
Town of Hamburg Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting June 30, 2015 

 

1 

 

   Town of Hamburg 
Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting 

June 30, 2015 
Minutes 

 

The Town of Hamburg Board of Zoning Appeals met for a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, June 
30, 2015 at 7:00 P.M. in Room 7B of Hamburg Town Hall, 6100 South Park Avenue.  Those 
attending included Chairman Brad Rybczynski, Vice-Chairman Shawn Connelly, Commissioner 
Joseph Sacco, Commissioner Bob Ginnetti, Commissioner Paul Eustace and Commissioner 
Louis M. Chiacchia. 

Others in attendance included Attorney Mark Walling, Board of Zoning Appeals Attorney and 
Kurt Allen, Supervising Building Inspection Official. 

Absent:  Commissioner Ric Dimpfl 

Chairman Rybczynski asked for a moment of silence to honor the men and women currently 
serving in the armed forces. 

Commissioner Eustace read the Notice of Public Hearing. 

 

Tabled Application # 5520 Gerald & Jane Schmidt – Requesting a use variance to allow a 
wind turbine at 6284 Smith Road 

Chairman Rybczynski stated that he had been informed that the applicant asked that this 
application be left on the table. 

 

Application # 5534 Joan Augustyniak – Requesting an area variance for a proposed front 
porch at 4474 Windsor Terrace 

Joan Augustyniak, applicant, stated that she would like to have a porch constructed on her 
house.  She stated that the porch would be 10’ X 20’.  She further stated that she would also 
have a new door installed with a skylight. 

Chairman Rybczynski stated that the home is already pre-existing non-conforming because it is 
too close to the front property line.   

Mr. Chiacchia stated that he visited the site and noted that some of the homes on the street are 
closer to the road than her home is.  He further noted that he spoke to the owner of 4478 
Windsor Terrace, who stated that he has no objections to what Ms. Augustyniak proposes. 

Findings: 

Mr. Connolly made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Eustace, to approve Application # 5534.  

On the question: 

Mr. Connolly reviewed the area variance criteria as follows: 

1. Whether the benefit can be achieved by other means feasible to the applicant – No, 
because the front of the house is the only place a front porch can be placed.      

 
2. Whether there would be an undesirable change in neighborhood character or to nearby 

properties – No, because in this development there are a lot of nonconforming 



Town of Hamburg Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting June 30, 2015 

 

2 

 

properties, and this will actually enhance the look of the property and the character of 
the homes in the nearby area.         

 
3. Whether the request is substantial – No.   

 
4. Whether the request will have adverse physical or environmental effects – No. 

 
5. Whether the alleged difficulty is self-created – This difficulty is self-created, but on 

balance it sways in favor of approval. 
 

All members voted in favor of the motion.  GRANTED. 

 

Application # 5535 John Roach – Requesting an area variance for a new detached garage at 
4793 Clifton Parkway 

Mr. John Roach, applicant, stated that he would like to build a new garage in the same spot 
where an old garage was that was destroyed in the November storm.   

Mr. Roach stated that the old garage was 1’ 4” from the side property line.  He noted that the 
new garage is two (2) feet wider than the old garage was, and if he locates the new garage five 
(5) feet from the side property line as required, it will not fit.  He noted that the new garage 
would be 1’ 4” from the property line, just as the old garage was. 

Mr. Chiacchia stated that the new garage will give the applicant more room for two (2) vehicles.   

Mr. Roach submitted a letter from his adjacent neighbor (Roman Birdzy, 4799 Clifton Parkway) 
indicating that he does not object to the granting of the requested variance. 

Findings: 

Mr. Chiacchia made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Eustace, to approve Application # 5535.  

On the question: 

Mr. Chiacchia reviewed the area variance criteria as follows: 

1. Whether the benefit can be achieved by other means feasible to the applicant – No, 
because he is trying to put the garage in the same place it was, and it was previously 
nonconforming.      

 
2. Whether there would be an undesirable change in neighborhood character or to nearby 

properties – No, because the old garage was there for 80 years.         
 

3. Whether the request is substantial – No, and the adjacent neighbor does not object.   
 

4. Whether the request will have adverse physical or environmental effects – No. 
 

5. Whether the alleged difficulty is self-created – No. 
 

All members voted in favor of the motion.  GRANTED. 

 

Application # 5536 Craig Mychajluk – Requesting an area variance for a proposed apartment 
building at 4229 Camp Road 



Town of Hamburg Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting June 30, 2015 

 

3 

 

Craig Mychajluk, applicant, stated that he has been to the Planning Board with a sketch for this 
project, and that Board did not seem to have any real issues with it.  He stated that if the project 
is built such that the apartment building is 50 feet from the front property line as required, the 
building would be a large rectangle with multiple parking spaces in front of it.   

Mr. Mychajluk stated that if he is granted the variance to move the building closer to the front 
property line, it would allow him to only have to construct one (1) driveway into the property, limit 
all of the parking and entrances to the individual garages from the rear and provide much more 
green space in front of the building.  He further stated that moving the building closer to the road 
would allow him to eliminate one (1) of the existing driveways on the site. 

Mr. Mychajluk stated that if the variance is granted, it would make the project more aesthetically 
pleasing and allow him to build a building with a stepped approach. 

Mr. Mychajluk stated that the existing three-story building on the site is closer to the road than 
the proposed apartment building would be.   

In response to a question from Mr. Chiacchia, Mr. Mychajluk stated that the apartments would 
probably be two-bedroom units, and four (4) units are proposed.  He further confirmed that each 
unit would house one (1) family, and the units would be approximately 1,200 square feet in 
area. 

Mr. Mychajluk stated that he has enough area to build the project in conformance with the 
requirement that the building be 50 feet from all property lines.  He is asking for permission to 
locate the building 18 feet closer to the front property line for aesthetic reasons. 

Mr. Oscar Williams, 4252 Camp Road, stated that he is concerned about a three-story building 
being constructed on this site.   

Mr. Mychajluk stated that there is an eight- to ten-foot drop in elevation from the neighbor’s 
property to his. 

Chairman Rybczynski stated that the Zoning Board of Appeals has no jurisdiction over the 
height of this proposed building, and its only consideration is the variance request to locate the 
building closer to the front property line. 

Gloria Foit, 4253 Camp Road, stated that her property is adjacent to the applicant’s property, 
and his project will impede her ability to see Lake Erie.   

Chairman Rybczynski responded that because the property is zoned R-3, the applicant has the 
right to construct something on the property.  He stated that if the variance is granted and the 
building is located closer to Camp Road, it may actually help Ms. Foit retain her ability to see the 
Lake from her back porch. 

Cheryl Fisher, 4259 Camp Road, stated that if the variance is granted, she will no longer be 
able to see the Lake. 

In response to a question from Chairman Rybczynski, Ms. Fisher stated that the existing 
building on the applicant’s property does not impede her view of the Lake. 

Mr. Leonard Graczyk, 4236 Seabreeze Avenue, stated that his property is directly behind the 
applicant’s property, and if the variance is not granted, the apartment building would be closer to 
his home.  He further stated that the properties on Seabreeze Avenue are at the same elevation 
as the applicant’s property. 

Mr. Robert Gould, 4224 Seabreeze Avenue, stated that his property also backs up to the 
applicant’s property, and he has a back porch.  He stated that he would not like to see a parking 



Town of Hamburg Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting June 30, 2015 

 

4 

 

lot in his back yard.  He stated that he wishes that the applicant would have spoken to the 
surrounding residents. 

Mr. Mychajluk stated that the rents for the apartments would be between $1,200 and $1,500 per 
month. 

Mr. Virgil Ross, 4294 Lakeshore Road, stated that drainage is a problem in this area, and the 
removal of green space will only make things worse.  He stated that he would rather the 
applicant place the driveways in the front in order to preserve the green space. 

Several members of the audience expressed displeasure with the fact that apartments are 
planned for this property. 

Mr. Sacco stated that if the Zoning Board Appeals approves the variance, some residents will 
not be happy, and if it denies the variance, others will not be happy. 

Findings: 

Mr. Connolly reviewed the area variance criteria for the benefit of the members of the public.  
He stated that this is a very difficult balancing test, given the fact that the nearby residents have 
expressed concerns.  He stated that perhaps the item should be tabled so that the residents can 
better understand what is being proposed.   

Chairman Rybczynski stated that he is not sure how much more evidence could be provided 
that would sway Board members regarding the 18-foot variance request. 

Mr. Chiacchia stated that if the item was tabled, it would allow the applicant to better inform the 
residents about the project and what he is proposing.   

Chairman Rybczynski reviewed the area variance criteria as follows: 

1. Whether the benefit can be achieved by other means feasible to the applicant – The 
applicant wants this layout for the project, and he has stated that this layout is the most 
desirable outcome for him.      

 
2. Whether there would be an undesirable change in neighborhood character or to nearby 

properties – This property contains a garage that will be removed, and the housing 
units will be new.  What direct effect this project has on the neighborhood can be 
debated, but this property is zoned R-3.         

 
3. Whether the request is substantial – The request is not for the entire frontage of the 

property, and the applicant meets the required 50 feet set back on the other three (3) 
sides.     

 
4. Whether the request will have adverse physical or environmental effects – Drainage 

problems were discussed, but the drainage plan is part of the submittal for any 
development. 

 
5. Whether the alleged difficulty is self-created – The applicant wants to build an 

apartment project on R-3 property, and he is asking for one (1) piece of consideration. 
 

Mr. Ginnetti made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Sacco, to approve Application # 5536.  

On the question: 

Mr. Ginnetti stated that he agrees with the Chairman’s review of the area variance criteria. 



Town of Hamburg Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting June 30, 2015 

 

5 

 

As the vote was four (4) ayes and two (2) nays (Mr. Connolly and Mr. Chiacchia), the motion 
passed.  GRANTED. 

 

Application # 5537 West Herr Toyota – Requesting an area variance for wall signage at 4141 
Southwestern Boulevard 

Attorney Mark Romanowski, representing the applicant, stated that the applicant would like to 
add wall signage at the request of the manufacturer (Scion).  He stated that if the variance is not 
granted, it would affect the business’s franchise rights because there is required marketing. 

Attorney Romanowski stated that one (1) requested new sign is “Scion”, and the other 
requested new sign is “Service Reception”.  He further noted that the applicant is requesting a 
variance to allow these two (2) new signs in addition to the two (2) signs currently on the front of 
the building. He stated that the applicant also is requesting a variance for the total square 
footage of wall signage (120 square feet is the maximum allowed, and the four (4) signs would 
total 151 square feet). 

In response to a question from Mr. Connolly, Attorney Romanowski stated that Scion has 
requirements that new signage be erected, as well as the size of the required signage. 

Findings: 

Mr. Sacco made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Connolly, to approve Application # 5537.  

On the question: 

Mr. Sacco reviewed the area variance criteria as follows: 

1. Whether the benefit can be achieved by other means feasible to the applicant – No, 
because the applicant has to conform to the rules set forth by the manufacturer.        

 
2. Whether there would be an undesirable change in neighborhood character or to nearby 

properties – No, there is no neighborhood there.         
 

3. Whether the request is substantial – No.   
 

4. Whether the request will have adverse physical or environmental effects – No. 
 

5. Whether the alleged difficulty is self-created – No. 
 

All members voted in favor of the motion.  GRANTED. 

 

Chairman Rybczynski stated that he has been informed that the Board was delinquent in its 
SEQR findings regarding the Michael Jablonski use variance request for two (2) wind turbines 
that was granted at a recent meeting.  He asked Board members to reconsider the item. 

Mr. Chiacchia made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Connolly, to reconsider this application at the 
Board’s next meeting (August 7, 2015). 

All members voted in favor of the motion. 

 

Mr. Connolly made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Chiacchia, to approve the minutes of June 3, 
2015. 



Town of Hamburg Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting June 30, 2015 

 

6 

 

All members voted in favor of the motion. 

Mr. Sacco made a MOTION, seconded by Mr. Eustace, to adjourn the meeting.  All members 
voted in favor of the motion. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 

 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
  
     Paul Eustace, Secretary 
     Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
DATE: July 15, 2015 

 
 
 
 


